
To subscribe to our email list, email Town Hall at: townhall@yarrowpointwa.gov 

Town of Yarrow Point, 4030 95th Ave. NE, Yarrow Point, WA 98004 

425-454-6994, townhall@yarrowpointwa.gov

  YARROW POINT 
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

April 12, 2022 
7:00 p.m. 

Town Hall 4030 95th Ave NE. Yarrow Point, WA. 98004 
1-253-215-8782 Meeting ID: 847 3298 7242#

Members of the public may participate in person at Town Hall or by phone/online. Town Hall has limited 
seating available up to 15 public members. Individuals who call in remotely who wish to speak live should 
register their request with the Deputy Clerk at 425-454-6994 or email depclerk@yarrowpointwa.gov and leave 
a message before 4:30PM on the day of the April 12, 2022, Council meeting. Wait for the Deputy Clerk to call 
on you before making your comment. If you dial in via telephone, please unmute yourself by dialing *6 when it 
is your turn to speak. Speakers will be allotted 3-minutes for comments. Please state your name and address 
and you will be asked to stop when you reach the 3-minute limit.  

Join on your computer or mobile app 

Or call in (audio only) 
1-253-215-8782
Meeting ID: 847 3298 7242#
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84732987242

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Katy Kinney Harris 

COUNCIL ROLL CALL: Stephan Lagerholm, Carl Scandella, Chuck Porter, Andy Valaas 
and Kathy Smith 

PAGE NO. 
1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:      1 

2. STAFF REPORTS: (10-minutes) 2-22

3. MINUTES: (3-minutes)

• March 8, 2022 Regular Meeting     23-26 

• March 8, 2022 Joint Town Council and Planning Commission Special Meeting  27-28 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR: (5-minutes)     29-63 
Consists of routine items for which Council discussion is not required. A Councilmember may
request that an item be moved to Regular Business for discussion. Consent items are
approved with one vote.

APPEARANCES/PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Members of the public may speak concerning items that either are or are not on the agenda. 
The Council takes these matters under advisement. Please state your name and address  
and limit comments to 3 minutes. If you call in via telephone, please unmute yourself by  
dialing *6 when it is your turn to speak. Comments via email may be submitted to  
depclerk@yarrowpointwa.gov  or regular mail to: Town of Yarrow Point  
4030 95th Ave NE Yarrow Point, WA. 98004 

REGULAR BUSINESS: (40-minutes) 
5. AB 22-27 – ARCH  Budget and Work Program; Trust Fund Project Funding; 64-109

and Amended Interlocal Agreement.

• Approve Resolutions 356-358      66-68 
6. AB 22-28 – 2021 Annual Financial Report 110-126
7. AB 22-29 – Sport Court Repair Options 127-141
8. AB 22-30 – Approving the Town’s expenditure for a sharing surface in 142

in Sally’s Alley
9. AB 22-31 – Plaque at Town Hall honoring late Peter D. Swindley   143 

10. MAYOR & COUNCIL REPORTS: (5-minutes)

11. ADJOURNMENT

mailto:depclerk@yarrowpointwa.gov
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84732987242
mailto:depclerk@yarrowpointwa.gov


Business of the Town Council Staff Reports 

Town of Yarrow Point, WA April 12, 2022 

STAFF REPORTS 

1. Police Report

2. Fire-EMS Reports

3. First quarter 2022 Financial Report

2



MEMO

To: Yarrow Point City Council 

From: Chief Kyle Kolling 

Date: April 12, 2022 

Re: March 2022 Summary

Greetings, 

March was a light month for training: 
• Regular monthly training through PoliceOne Academy continued with 2

hours of instruction on responding to active shooter incidents and safety
and procedure in domestic violence responses.

• Officer Jennings attended a 40 hour training on Crime Prevention through
Environmental Design (CPTED), and in doing so, received his CPTED
certification. CPTED is a training that focuses on crime prevention by
utilizing the built environment to create safer neighborhoods.

7 Facebook posts were created in February which reached over 748 people. 
Our page garnered over 194 engagements this month by the public (reactions, 
comments, and shares). In addition, the Sentinel e-newsletter continued with 
four editions published to almost 800 recipients. We now have 139 followers on 
our Instagram account. Our Twitter account now has 20 followers and growing. 
We will also be encouraging our residents to fill out a house watch request form 
if planning on leaving town for an extended time, especially as the warmer 
weather and vacation season approaches.   

March was a somber month as we learned of three fallen members of law 
enforcement from other law enforcement agencies in Washington. Two of 
which occurred while the officer/deputy was on duty. Clyde Hill Police 
Department participated in the funeral procession for Fallen Pierce County 
Deputy Calata. Clyde Hill Police Department also assisted the City of Everett 
with traffic control for the funeral procession for Fallen Everett Police Officer 
Rocha, and attended his memorial afterward. Participating in these events is a 
way for our department to pay our respects and recognize the ultimate sacrifice 
made by these officers and deputy.  

3



22-1223 03-04-2022 4400 Block 94th Ave NE MV Prowl Swai 

Reporting party came to the Police Department to report that their spouse’s unlocked vehicle had been prowled sometime overnight. The 
vehicle was found with the door open and multiple items missing. No suspect information available. Report taken for 
information/documentation purposes only.  

4



March February 2022 2021
2022 2022 YTD YTD

CRIMES AGAINST PERSONS
Assault 0 0 0 0
Domestic Violence/Disturbance 0 1 0 2  
Harassment 0 0 0 1
Order violation 0 0 0 0  
Rape/sex offenses 0 0 1 0  
Robbery 0 0 0 0

Other (Abuse, APS, civil, CPS, custodial 
interference, extortion)

0 0 0 1
 

PROPERTY CRIMES
Burglary 0 0 1 1  
Fraud 0 0 0 1  
MV Prowl 1 0 1 2  
MV Theft 0 0 0 0
Theft 1 0 2 2  
Other (Arson, illegal dumping, malicious 
mischief, prowler, trespass) 0 0 6 2  

ARRESTS
Drug/alcohol 0 0 0 0
Warrants 0 0 0 0
Other 0 1 1 0  

TRAFFIC ACTIVITY
Criminal Traffic 0 0 0 0
Infractions 5 14 27 2  
Warnings 5 4 19 25
Traffic accidents 0 0 0 0  
Traffic stops 13 9 33 29
OTHER
Alarms 3 3 6 6  
Complaints
~Animal 0 0 1 1  
~Fireworks 0 0 0 0
~Noise 0 2 2 1  
~Parking 6 10 16 10
~Soliciting 0 0 0 0
Deaths 0 0 0 0  

Suspicious 3 2 6 2

Drug/alcohol 0 0 0 0

PUBLIC SERVICES
Other Public Services (area check, assist, 
community policing, contacts, direct 
enforcement/patrol, 911 hang-ups, fire 
assist, follow up, on-view, order service, 
walk through, welfare check)

19 17 36 76

 

5



Citations - Non-Traffic 0

Criminal Traffic 0

Infractions - Traffic 5
8800 POINTS DR NE

9000 BLK POINTS DR NE
8900 BLK POINTS DR NE

Speed 16-20 MPH Over Limit (40 or Under) 1 8900 POINTS DR
Speed 21-25 MPH Over Limit (40 or Under) 1 9000 BLK POINTS DR NE

Infractions - Parking 2
Parked Blocking Lane of Travel 2 4000 94TH AVE NE (2)

Speed 11-15 MPH Over Limit (40 or Under) 3

6



 

20180807 - Contract Cities Incident Types Date:  Wednesday, April 6, 2022 
Time:  11:12:02 AM

 
 

Incident Date between 2022-03-01 and 2022-04-01
City equal to Yarrow Point

 

 

Incident Type Group Incident Count

EMS 2
EMS Cancelled 1

          Page 1. 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



TOWN OF YARROW POINT 

COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  

March 8, 2022 

7:00 p.m. 

 
The following is a summary of the proceedings and is not a verbatim transcript.  
 

CALL TO ORDER: 
Mayor Katy Kinney Harris called the meeting to order at 7:08 p.m. 

 
PRESENT: 

 

Mayor:  Mayor Katy Kinney Harris   
   

Councilmembers:      Stephan Lagerholm  
Carl Scandella 
Chuck Porter 

Andy Valaas 
Kathy Smith 

 
Staff: Bonnie Ritter – Clerk-Treasurer 
 Austen Wilcox – Deputy Clerk 

 Mona Green – Town Planner 
 Stacia Schroeder – Town Engineer 

 Scott Missall – Town Attorney 
    
Guests: Dawn Hanson – Clyde Hill Police Department 

 Cheryl Pietromonaco – Resident 
 Carl Hellings – Planning Commission Chairman 

   
 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOTION: Motion by Councilmember Valaas seconded by Councilmember Lagerholm to 
add AB 22-27 Planning Commission Work Plan to the agenda.  

VOTE: 5 For, 0 Against. Motion carried. 
 

2. STAFF REPORTS:  

A. Police Report 

Lieutenant Dawn Hanson gave a report on January police activity. 

• Issue on 9000 block of NE 34th St. 

• 1 Assault 

• Several ticket infractions 

• Catalytic converter thefts. 
 
Lieutenant Hanson recommends the addition of a Flock Safety license plate reader camera to 

capture rear license plates of vehicles exiting Yarrow Point on 92nd Ave NE. 
 

23



3. MINUTES 

A.  Minutes of February 8, 2022 Regular Meeting 

MOTION: Motion by Councilmember Valaas seconded by Councilmember Lagerholm to 
approve the February 8, 2022 regular minutes as presented.  

VOTE: 5 For, 0 Against. Motion carried.  
 
B. Minutes of February 28, 2022 Special Meeting 

MOTION: Motion by Councilmember Lagerholm seconded by Councilmember Valaas to 
approve the February 28, 2022 special minutes as presented.  

VOTE: 5 For, 0 Against. Motion carried.  
 
4. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

MOTION: Motion by Councilmember Valaas seconded by Councilmember Smith to approve 
the Consent Calendar as presented. The Payment Approval Report dated 03/03/2022 

approving payments as shown totaling $90,026.62 plus payroll, benefits, and tax expenses of 
$31,488.58 as shown on the attached payroll & benefits report for a total of $121,515.20. 
VOTE: 5 For, 0 Against. Motion carried.  

 
APPEARANCES: 

Cheryl Pietromonaco resident at 3445 92nd Ave NE discussed her hedge complaint and 
requests enforcement of the town’s current hedge code.  
 

REGULAR BUSINESS 

 

5. AB 22-21: NE 36th Street Engineering Design Proposal 
Gray & Osborne, Inc. submitted a proposal for the design work for Capital Improvement  
Project #1 – NE 36th Street. 

 
The scope of work defined in Exhibit ‘A’ and estimated in Exhibit ‘B’ includes the 

following activities: 
 
• Project Management and QA/QC 

• Mapping 
• Utility Coordination 

• Preliminary Design 
• Final Design 
• Bid and Award Services; and  

• Quality Assurance/ Quality Control 
 

The recommendation is to approve the proposal for Gray & Osborne, Inc. to provide 
engineering services for the NE 36th Street project. 
 

MOTION: Motion by Councilmember Valaas seconded by Councilmember Porter to 
authorize Mayor Harris to enter a contract with Gray & Osborne, Inc for the design of 

stormwater improvements for NE 36th St at a price not to exceed $40,000.00. 
VOTE: 5 For, 0 Against. Motion carried 
 

24



6. AB 22-22: Flock Safety camera location facing south on 92nd Ave NE – cost options 

At the February 8 regular Council meeting, Lieutenant Hanson discussed the need for a 

camera facing south to capture vehicles’ rear license plates exiting Yarrow Point on 92nd  
Ave NE. 

 
Staff received pricing options to add one additional camera, or transfer a current camera to 
the location on 92nd Ave NE. 

 
Council discussed and chose to purchase one new additional camera.  

 
MOTION: Motion by Councilmember Lagerholm seconded by Councilmember Scandella to 
purchase one additional Flock Safety camera for the location facing south on 92nd Ave NE as 

proposed by the Deputy Clerk for a cost of $2,400.00 a year.   
VOTE: 5 For, 0 Against. Motion carried 

 
7. AB 22-23: Resolution 359 – Council liaison for Planning Commission 

 

MOTION: Motion by Councilmember Valaas seconded by Councilmember porter to approve 
Resolution No. 359, a Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Yarrow Point, 

Washington, appointing Councilmember Carl Scandella as the Council liaison for the 
Planning Commission. 
VOTE: 5 For, 0 Against. Motion carried. 

 
8. AB 22-24: Resolution 360 – Council liaison for Park Board 

 
MOTION: Motion by Councilmember Lagerholm seconded by Councilmember Valaas to 
approve Resolution No. 360, a Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Yarrow Point, 

Washington, appointing Councilmember Kathy smith as the Council liaison for the Park 
Board. 

VOTE: 5 For, 0 Against. Motion carried. 
 

9. AB 22-25: Addition of two Little Lending Libraries 

The Little Library Association is seeking Council permission to permit the placement of 
Little Libraries around Town Hall and Road End Beach contingent upon design and location 

approval. 
 
No cost would be involved to build the little libraries. The Little Library Association will 

present a proposal to Council 
 

MOTION: Motion by Councilmember Porter seconded by Councilmember Scandella to 
authorize two micro–Lending Libraries at Town Hall and Road End Beach. 
VOTE: 5 For, 0 Against. Motion carried. 

 

 

10. AB 22-26: Resolution 361 – Condemnation of Russian invasion of Ukraine  

An emergency Resolution strongly condemning the Russian invasion of Ukraine, 
denouncing Russian President Vladimir Putin’s years-long aggression against this 

25



sovereign country, supporting Ukraine and the Ukrainian people, and encouraging the 
United States and its partners to continue the exceptionally strong sanctions against  

Russia. 
 

Council discussed and will replace the “Moscow” reference with “Russia.” 
 

MOTION: Motion by Councilmember Lagerholm seconded by Councilmember Scandella to 

adopt Resolution No. 361, A Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Yarrow Point, 
Washington, Condemning the Russian Invasion of Ukraine, Denouncing Russian President 

Vladimir Putin’s Years-long Aggression Against This Sovereign Country, Supporting 
Ukraine and the Ukrainian People, and Encouraging the United States and Its Partners to 
Continue the Exceptionally Strong Sanctions Against Russia as amended. 

VOTE: 5 For, 0 Against. Motion carried 
 

11. MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS: 

Mayor 

La Quinta Inn: King County purchased the Kirkland La Quinta in for transitional housing. 

Council discussed inviting a King County representative to hold an open house to ask 
commonly asked questions. Mayor Harris discussed a recent tour she took of a supportive 

housing center. She discussed a letter submitted by resident Carl Stork at 4451 91st Ave NE 
regarding the La Quinta and she will reach out to him. 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT: 

MOTION: Motion by Councilmember Valaas seconded by Councilmember Porter to adjourn 

the meeting at 8:07 p.m.  
VOTE: 5 For, 0 Against. Motion carried. 
 

 

 

APPROVED:      ATTEST: 
 
 

___________________________   ___________________________  
Katy Kinney Harris, Mayor                Bonnie Ritter, Clerk-Treasurer 

26



TOWN OF YARROW POINT 

JOINT TOWN COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MINUTES  

March 8, 2022   
 
The following is a condensation of the proceedings and is not a verbatim transcript.   

 
CALL TO ORDER: 

Carl Hellings Planning Commission Chairman called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. 
 
PRESENT: 

 
 Chairman:         Carl Hellings       

 Commissioners:                 Chuck Hirsch  
      Jeffrey Shiu 
      David Feller – Excused absence  

      Lee Sims  
         

  Mayor & Council:              Katy Kinney Harris – Mayor 
           Stephan Lagerholm – Councilmember 
           Carl Scandella – Councilmember 

           Chuck Porter – Councilmember 
           Andy Valaas – Councilmember 

           Kathy Smith – Councilmember               
 
            Staff:          Bonnie Ritter – Clerk-Treasurer 

           Austen Wilcox – Deputy Clerk 
           Mona Green – Town Planner                     

           Emily Miner – Town Attorney                    
             
             

REGULAR BUSINESS: 

PCAB 22-03 – Planning Commission 2022 Workplan discussion with Council 

Attorney Emily Miner discussed with Council and Planning Commission the following 
topics: 
 

Tree code  

• Amendments for town initiated incentive program to help preserve existing trees on 
lots. 

• Funding and sources if required for incentive program. The Planning Commission 
will research options. 

• Enforcement & penalties. 

• Transplanting/donating trees. 
 

Hedge code 

• Clarifying the town’s hedge code to make it less ambiguous and more easily 
enforced. 

 
 

27



Short Term Rentals / HB 1220 

• Short term rentals and transitional housing were discussed. Recently passed HB 
1220 prohibits jurisdictions from preventing transitional housing and a definition 
needs to be found for what this this means for Yarrow Point. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

MOTION: Motion by Chairman Hellings seconded by Commissioner Hirsch to adjourn the 

meeting at 7:02 p.m.  
VOTE: 4 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain. Motion carried. 

 
APPROVED:               ATTEST: 
 

 
___________________________             ___________________________  

Carl Hellings, Chairman              Austen Wilcox, Deputy Clerk 
  

28



Business of The Town Council Consent Calendar 

Town of Yarrow Point, WA April 12, 2022 

Consent Calendar Proposed Council Action: 
Approve Consent Calendar 

Presented by:  Clerk-Treasurer 

Exhibits:  Consent Calendar Items 

Summary: 

The Consent Calendar consists of items considered routine for which a staff 

recommendation has been prepared, and for which Council discussion is not required. A 
council member may request that an item be removed from the Consent Calendar and 

placed under Regular Business for discussion. Items on the Consent Calendar are voted 
upon as a block and approved with one vote. 

The following document are included in this section: 

• Payment Approval and Payroll Reports

Recommended Action: 

Motion to: Approve the Consent Calendar as presented including: 

The Payment Approval Report dated 04/06/2022 approving payments as shown totaling 

$172,955.15, plus payroll, benefits, and tax expenses of $31,755.13 as shown on the 
attached payroll & benefits report for a total of $204,710.28. 

29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



Yarrow Point Building Official and Administration Services Invoice 

                                                                                                                      January 2020

EIN:    77-0688460 UBI:   602719863

Activity 

Type: Building Official

Date Job Function Name Description of Work

Permit 

Type Permit # Hours

Travel 

Time 

(Round 

Trip) Rate

Mileage 

(Round 

Trip at 

.585/mile

)

Mileage 

Charge

Total Charge

3/1/22 Code Enforcement 9120 NE 32nd St. Fence and gates installed 

without permit.  

N/A N/A 0.50 0.00  $ 125.00 3.00  $   1.76  $    64.26 

3/25/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 

Point

Meet with Mayor and City 

Attorney Re Construction 

parking, and hedge 

enforcement

N/A N/A 0.75 0.00  $ 125.00 6.00  $   3.51  $    97.26 

3/30/22 Code Enforcement Guilford; 8809 NE 

34th St.

Stop Work Order created and 

posted.  Second trip to this 

property.  Meeting with owner 

and contractor to review the 

premises. 

N/A N/A 0.75 0.00  $ 125.00 1.00  $   0.59  $    94.34 

Activity Total for Building Official  (104 000 000 559 60 48 00) 2.00 0.00 10.00 5.85$    255.85$   

Activity 

Type: Inspections

Date Job Function Name Description of Work

Permit 

Type Permit # Hours

Travel 

Time 

(Round 

Trip) Charge

Mileage 

(Round 

Trip at 

.585/mile

)

Mileage 

Charge Total Charge

3/1/22 Inspection Mishra; 4412 95th 

Ave. NE

Site retaining wall footing. 

Revised plans needed due to 

wall design change

Building 20-8054 0.75 0.00  $ 125.00 3.00 1.76  $    95.51 

3/4/22 Inspection Wazeri; 3608 95th 

Ave. NE

Pre-construction meeting.  

Failed due to lack of permit 

documents and proposed 

changes

Building 20-8200 0.75 0.00  $ 125.00 6.00 3.51  $    97.26 

3/8/22 Inspection Whittlesey; 9228 

NE 37th Pl.

Exterior sheathing and roof 

sheathing.  Lateral continuity

Building 21-8280 1.00 0.00  $ 125.00 6.00 3.51  $     128.51 

3/9/22 Inspection Fleming; 4721 

91st Ave. NE

Footing and storm drainage 

repair

Building BP-2021-

09

0.50 0.00  $ 125.00 3.00 1.76  $    64.26 

3/9/22 Inspection Biege; 9051 NE 

37th Pl.

Footing drain Building BP-2021-

02

0.50 0.00  $ 125.00 3.00 1.76  $    64.26 

3/11/22 Inspection Chinn; 4218 92nd 

Ave. NE

Rough plumbing Plumbing PP-2022-

06

0.50 0.00  $ 125.00 6.00 3.51  $    66.01 

(104 000 000 559 60 48 00)

Steven R. Wilcox

Municipal Permit Services, LLC 
109 NW 112th. NW Seattle, WA 98177

March 2022

51



3/17/22 Inspection Guilford; 8807 NE 

34th St.

Partial underground mechanical Mechanical MP-2021-

28

0.50 0.00  $ 125.00 6.00 3.51  $          66.01 

3/17/22 Inspection Guilford; 8807 NE 

34th St.

Retaining wall Building 21-8264 0.50 0.00  $ 125.00 0.00 0.00  $          62.50 

3/18/22 Inspection Yarrow LLC 

Residence; 9018 

NE 39th Pl.

Meet on-site with Bellevue Fire 

Marshal to investigate design 

changes and evaluate access 

and need for auto fire sprinklers. 

Building BP-2021-

08

1.00 0.00  $ 125.00 6.00 3.51  $        128.51 

3/21/22 Inspection Warner; 9235 NE 

37th Pl.

Pre-construction meeting.  

Failed due to lack of permit 

documents.

Building BP-2021-

07

0.75 0.00  $ 125.00 6.00 3.51  $          97.26 

3/22/22 Inspection Mishra; 4412 95th 

Ave. NE

Shower pan leakage test Building 20-8235 0.50 0.00  $ 125.00 6.00 3.51  $          66.01 

3/23/22 Inspection Warner; 9235 NE 

37th Pl.

Pre-construction meeting Building BP-2021-

07

0.75 0.00  $ 125.00 3.00 1.76  $          95.51 

3/23/22 Inspection Whittlesey; 9228 

NE 37th Pl.

Meet on-site with contractor to 

review possible changes to 

structure. 

Building 21-8280 0.50 0.00  $ 125.00 3.00 1.76  $          64.26 

3/24/22 Inspection Biege; 9051 NE 

37th Pl.

Underfloor framing Building BP-2021-

02

1.00 0.00  $ 125.00 3.00 1.76  $        126.76 

3/24/22 Inspection Morrow; 4427 91st 

Pl. NE

Site retaining wall. Building BP-2021-

01

0.75 0.00  $ 125.00 3.00 1.76  $          95.51 

3/24/22 Inspection Morrow; 4427 91st 

Pl. NE

Service water line. Plumbing PP-2021-

08

0.50 0.00  $ 125.00 0.00 0.00  $          62.50 

3/25/22 Inspection Biege; 9051 NE 

37th Pl.

Storm drainage at building 

perimeter.

Building BP-2021-

02

0.50 0.00  $ 125.00 6.00 3.51  $          66.01 

3/30/22 Inspection Guilford; 8809 NE 

34th St.

(exisiting house). Gas piping.  

Failed due to construction 

without required building permit. 

Work verbally ordered to stop.

Plumbing PP-2022-

08

0.75 0.00  $ 125.00 6.00 3.51  $          97.26 

3/31/22 Inspection Pardikar; 4030 

95th Ave. NE

Final plumbing.  Close out. Plumbing PP-2022-

05

0.50 0.00  $ 125.00 0.00 0.00  $          62.50 

Inspection 0.00 0.00  $ 125.00 0.00 0.00  $                -   

Activity Total for Inspections (104 000 000 559 60 41 00) 12.50 0.00 125.00$  75.00 43.88$  1,606.38$      

Activity 

Type: Plan Review

Date Job Function Name Description of Work

Permit 

Type Permit # Hours Charge

Mileage 

(Round 

Trip at 

Mileage 

Charge Total Charge

3/3/22 Plan Review Donner; 4609 

92nd Ave. NE

Pre-application meeting for 

alteration and addition

Building Pre-App-

2022-04

0.5  $ 125.00 0.00 0  $          62.50 

3/10/22 Plan Review Angelone; 4427 

95th Ave. NE

Pre-application meeting for 

alteration and addition

Building Pre-App-

2022-05

1  $ 125.00 0.00 0  $        125.00 

3/14/22 Plan Review Diep; 9018 NE 

39th Pl.

Revisions.  Comment letter Building BP-2021-

08

2.25  $ 125.00 0.00 0  $        281.25 

3/14/22 Plan Review Yetter; 9127 NE 

36th St.

Garage addition and alterations.  

Comment letter

Building BP-2022-

05

2.5  $ 125.00 0.00 0  $        312.50 

52



3/15/22 Plan Review Rowell; 4650 92nd 

Ave. NE

Vehicle access gate Building BP-2021-

16

0.5  $ 125.00 0.00 0  $          62.50 

3/17/22 Plan Review Box; 9050 NE 

38th Pl.

Pre-application meeting for 

alteration and addition.  Meeting 

prep, meeting, and follow-up 

checklist

Building Pre-App-

2022-06

0.75  $ 125.00 0.00 0  $          93.75 

3/24/22 Plan Review Hong; 9024 NE 

37th Pl.

Revision to roof. Building BP-2020-

8232

0.5  $ 125.00 0.00 0  $          62.50 

3/25/22 Plan Review Yarrow LLC 

Residence; 9018 

NE 39th Pl.

Structural and architectural 

revisions.  New permit valuation 

and permit fee.  First review with 

comments.

Building BP-2021-

08

4.5  $ 125.00 0.00 0  $        562.50 

3/25/22 Plan Review Esparza; 9043 NE 

37th Pl.

Engineering review by sub-

consultant.   Review during 

March

Building BP-2021-

15

16  $ 125.00 0.00 0  $     2,000.00 

3/25/22 Plan Review Dreizen; 4436 

95th Ave NE

Pier demolition Demolition DP-2022-

12

0.25  $ 125.00 0.00 0  $          31.25 

3/25/22 Plan Review Dreizen; 4436 

95th Ave NE

Pier.  Second review with 

comment letter

Building BP-2022-

02

1  $ 125.00 0.00 0  $        125.00 

3/25/22 Plan Review Yetter; 9127 NE 

36th St.

Garage addition and alterations.  Building BP-2022-

05

2  $ 125.00 0.00 0  $        250.00 

3/25/22 Plan Review Matthew; 9003 NE 

41st St.

Engineering review by sub-

consultant.  Review during 

March

Building BP-2022-

03

15  $ 125.00 0.00 0  $     1,875.00 

3/29/22 Plan Review Esparza; 9043 NE 

37th Pl.

Second comment lettter 

regarding demolition permit 

application.

Demolition DP-2021-

04

0.5  $ 125.00 0.00 0  $          62.50 

3/31/22 Plan Review Hayes; 9330 NE 

34th St.

Pre-application meeting for 

demolition and new residence.  

Meeting prep, meeting, and 

follow-up checklist

Building PRE-App-

2022-07

0.75  $ 125.00 0.00 0  $          93.75 

Plan Review 0  $ 125.00 0.00 0  $                -   

Activity Total for Plan Review (104 000 000 559 69 49 00) 8.00 125.00$  6,000.00$      

Activity 

Type:

Administrative Services

Date Job Function Name Description of Work Hours Charge Total Charge

Administrative Services Invoice preparation 0.00 $35.00 $0.00

53



Activity Total for Administrative Services $0.00

Activity 

Type:

Activity Total for Administrative Services (no account number assigned) $0.00

Note:  This invoice reflects 2021 IRS mileage rate of 58.5 cents/mile TOTAL 7,862.23$   

54



Yarrow Point Invoice Detail 
March 2022

Stacia K. Schroeder, PE
Northwest Civil Solutions, LLC

14251 131st Avenue NE Kirkland, WA 98034
EIN: 26-4149507     UBI: 602-884-283

Date Job Function Name Description of Work Hours Rate Total Charge

3/1/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

Review G&O proposal and prepare staff report 1.00  $    125.00  $    125.00 

3/8/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

Attend council mtg to discuss G&O design proposal 0.75  $    125.00  $    93.75 

3/22/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

Coord w/ Mayor Harris for signature and send signed contract and 
survey CAD file to G&O

0.25  $    125.00  $    31.25 

3/23/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

Send CAD files to G&O 0.25  $    125.00  $    31.25 

Activity Subtotal for Town Engineer - CIP #S-2 2.25  $    125.00  $    281.25 

Date Job Function Name Description of Work Hours Rate Total Charge

3/10/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

On-site to inspect strip drain at 4235 91st Ave NE completion; 
review and approve KC Roads invoice

1.00  $    125.00  $    125.00 

3/14/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

on-site to do final on strip drain repair 0.75  $    125.00  $    93.75 

3/23/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

closeout paperwork: 1.) check w/ Bonnie/ Austen Re: retainage 
check hold; 2.) send reminders to WA DOR and LNI Re: status of 
NOC

1.00  $    125.00  $    125.00 

3/25/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

locate AA Strip drain invoice; review, file, and send to clerk for 
processing

0.25  $    125.00  $    31.25 

3/29/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

Coord w/ G&O-Kevin Re: Millenium unpaid invoice; email response 
to Heather

0.50  $    125.00  $    62.50 

Activity Subtotal for Town Engineer - NE 42nd Street 3.50  $    125.00  $    437.50 

Date Job Function Name Description of Work Hours Rate Total Charge

3/23/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

coord via phone/ email and send 94th Ave NE survey info to COB - 
Utilities for water main upgrade design work and to PSE - Jason 
Airey for schedule 74 conversion request; asked to have back for 
5/10 council consideration

2.00  $    125.00  $    250.00 

Activity Subtotal for Town Engineer - CIP #T-1 2.00  $    125.00  $    250.00 

Date Job Function Name Description of Work Hours Rate Total Charge

FUND: Capital Improvement    ACTIVITY TYPE: 94th Ave NE - UGC & Storm Improvements    ACTIVITY CODE: XXXXX

FUND: Capital Improvement    ACTIVITY TYPE: CIP #1 - NE 36th St    ACTIVITY CODE: XXXXX

FUND: Capital Improvement    ACTIVITY TYPE: NE 42nd Street/ 91st Ave NE Stormwater Upsizing and UGC Project    ACTIVITY CODE: XXXXX

FUND: Capital Improvement    ACTIVITY TYPE: 94th Ave NE - Survey (S-4)    ACTIVITY CODE: XXXXX

1

55



Yarrow Point Invoice Detail 
March 2022

Stacia K. Schroeder, PE
Northwest Civil Solutions, LLC

14251 131st Avenue NE Kirkland, WA 98034
EIN: 26-4149507     UBI: 602-884-283

- Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

- 0.00  $         125.00  $                       -   

Activity Subtotal for Town Engineer - CIP #S-4 0.00  $         125.00  $                       -   

Activity Total for Capital Improvement Projects 
7.75  $         125.00  $               968.75 

2

56



Yarrow Point Invoice Detail 
March 2022

Stacia K. Schroeder, PE
Northwest Civil Solutions, LLC

14251 131st Avenue NE Kirkland, WA 98034
EIN: 26-4149507     UBI: 602-884-283

Date Job Function Name Description of Work Hours Rate Total Charge

3/1/22 Pre-application Donner; 4609 92nd 
Ave NE

Pre-app research and prepare for mtg PA #22-04 1.50  $    125.00  $    187.50 

3/2/22 Pre-application Angelone; 4427 
95th Ave NE

Pre-app research and prepare for mtg; preliminary comments PA #22-05 0.75  $    125.00  $    93.75 

3/3/22 Pre-application Pelzer; 4628 95th 
Ave NE

Attend mtg w/ staff and applicant's agent PA #22-03 0.50  $    125.00  $    62.50 

3/3/22 Pre-application Donner; 4609 92nd 
Ave NE

Attend mtg w/ staff and applicant's agent; followup emails with 
comments

PA #22-04 1.00  $    125.00  $    125.00 

3/10/22 Pre-application Angelone; 4427 
95th Ave NE

Attend pre-app for patio work and interior remodel PA #22-05 0.75  $    125.00  $    93.75 

3/17/22 Pre-application Box; 9050 NE 38th 
St

Prepare for and attend pre-app mtg Re: exterior patio and interior 
remodel; verify impervious surfaces including NE 38th Place

PA #22-06 1.75  $    125.00  $    218.75 

3/23/22 Pre-application Weber; 9003 NE 
37th Place

Answer arch - J. Saboda's email via phone call PA #22-01 0.25  $    125.00  $    31.25 

3/31/22 Pre-application Hayes; 9330 NE 
40th St

Prepare for and attend pre-app mtg Re: new SFR; followup email PA #22-07 1.00  $    125.00  $    125.00 

Activity Subtotal for Pre-Applications 7.50 125.00$     937.50$     

Date Job Function Name Description of Work Hours Rate Total Charge

- BLA Review - - 0.00  $    125.00  $    -  

Activity Subtotal for Plan Review 0.00 125.00$     -$     
 $    -  

Date Job Function Name Description of Work Hours Charge Total Charge

3/1/22 Plan Review Clapp; 4415 91st 
Ave NE

Review and approve site permit; SEPA #21-04 & SX #21-04 SITE #22-03 0.75  $    125.00  $    93.75 

3/7/22 Inspection Spencer; 4601 91st 
Ave NE

respond to Schultz - Eric Re: site final questions SD #21-06 0.25  $    125.00  $    31.25 

3/11/22 Inspection Guilford; 8807 NE 
34th St

on-site for storm drainage inspection SITE  
#21-8265

0.75  $    125.00  $    93.75 

Activity Type: Pre-Applications  

Activity Type: Plan Review/ Inspection - Site Development Permit

Activity Type: Plan Review (Boundary Line Adjustment/ Short Plat)

3

57



Yarrow Point Invoice Detail 
March 2022

Stacia K. Schroeder, PE
Northwest Civil Solutions, LLC

14251 131st Avenue NE Kirkland, WA 98034
EIN: 26-4149507     UBI: 602-884-283

3/12/22 Plan Review Wazeri; 3806 95th 
Ave NE

Coord w/ applicant Re: new parking plan and pre-con mtg SITE          
#20-8201

0.25  $         125.00  $                 31.25 

3/15/22 Plan Review Wazeri; 3806 95th 
Ave NE

On-site for revised parking plan pre-con mtg w/ Architect, contractor, 
and applicant

SITE          
#20-8201

1.00  $         125.00  $               125.00 

3/15/22 Inspection Biege; 9051 NE 
37th Place

on-site for storm drainage inspection SITE          
#21-03

0.75  $         125.00  $                 93.75 

3/17/22 Plan Review Wazeri; 3806 95th 
Ave NE

Parking plan review and coord w/ Steve Wilcox SITE          
#20-8201

0.50  $         125.00  $                 62.50 

3/21/22 Inspection Warner; 9235 NE 
37th Place

On-site for pre-construction meeting w/ Steve W., contractor, and 
owner

SD #21-04 0.75  $         125.00  $                 93.75 

3/21/22 Inspection Wazeri; 3806 95th 
Ave NE

On-site for TESC/ Parking complaint/ inspection; Mtg w/ Jay & Zach - 
RWS

SITE          
#20-8201

0.75  $         125.00  $                 93.75 

3/22/22 Plan Review Pelzer; 4628 95th 
Ave NE

Review and approve site permit  SD #22-05 0.50  $         125.00  $                 62.50 

3/22/22 Plan Review Belfiore; 9009 NE 
42nd St

Review and approve site permit  SD #22-01 0.50  $         125.00  $                 62.50 

3/23/22 Inspection Wazeri; 3806 95th 
Ave NE

Answer contractor's phone call Re: on-site tree removal SITE          
#20-8201

0.25  $         125.00  $                 31.25 

3/28/22 Inspection Wazeri; 3806 95th 
Ave NE

Coord w/ Mayor Harris and City of Kirkland Re: potential 
unpermitted tree removal on lot to the east; 

SITE          
#20-8201

0.50  $         125.00  $                 62.50 

3/29/22 Plan Review Matthews; 9003 NE 
41st St

Plan review and coord for revisions SITE          
#22-02

0.50  $         125.00  $                 62.50 

3/29/22 Plan Review Johnson; 9045 NE 
40th Place

Plan review and approval; coord w/ applicant for updated site plan SITE          
#22-07

1.00  $         125.00  $               125.00 

3/30/22 Inspection Wazeri; 3806 95th 
Ave NE

On-site for mtg w/ applicant Re: depth of existing fill material on 95th 
and stability; geotechnical engineer required to monitor site prior to 
placement of footings

SITE          
#20-8201

0.75  $         125.00  $                 93.75 

Activity Subtotal for Plan Review - Site Development Permit 9.75 125.00$          1,218.75$             

4

58



Yarrow Point Invoice Detail 
March 2022

Stacia K. Schroeder, PE
Northwest Civil Solutions, LLC

14251 131st Avenue NE Kirkland, WA 98034
EIN: 26-4149507     UBI: 602-884-283

Date Job Function Name Description of Work Hours Charge Total Charge

3/7/22 Plan Review Wazeri; 3806 95th 
Ave NE

Read through staff emails ROW 
#20-8202

0.25  $    125.00  $    31.25 

3/22/22 Plan Review Yetter; 9127 NE 
36th St

Coord w/ staff RE: recordable agreement for 3-year plant 
maintenance 

ROW 
#22-0x

0.75  $    125.00  $    93.75 

3/23/22 Inspection COB; 8800-9200 
Pts Drive NE

Impromptu mtg at town hall w/ COB- Chris Re: potential concrete 
below Points Drive asphalt surface and need to pothole

ROW 
#21-06

0.50  $    125.00  $    62.50 

3/24/22 Inspection Wazeri; 3806 95th 
Ave NE

Impromptu mtg at town hall w/ Steve W. Re: existing R/W Use 
permit and parking

ROW 
#20-8202

0.25  $    125.00  $    31.25 

3/29/22 Plan Review Biege; 9051 NE 
37th St

Plan review and approve; coord w/ applicant for R/W Use site plan; 
review final site permit SITE #22-06

ROW 
#22-05

1.00  $    125.00  $    125.00 

3/29/22 Plan Review Warner; 9235 NE 
37th Pl

Plan review and approval ROW 
#22-07

0.25  $    125.00  $    31.25 

3/29/22 Plan Review Kim; 2822 88th Ave 
NE

Coord w/ PSE - InfraSource and staff Re: permit extension and 
revised scope of work

ROW 
#21-07

0.25  $    125.00  $    31.25 

Activity Subtotal for Permit Review/Inspection - Right of Way Use Permit(s) 3.25 125.00$     406.25$     

Activity Total for Pre-apps/Plan Reviews/ Permits/ Inspections 
20.50  $    125.00  $    2,562.50 

Activity Type: Permit Review/Inspection - Right of Way Use Permit(s)

5

59



Yarrow Point Invoice Detail 
March 2022

Stacia K. Schroeder, PE
Northwest Civil Solutions, LLC

14251 131st Avenue NE Kirkland, WA 98034
EIN: 26-4149507     UBI: 602-884-283

Date Job Function Name Description of Work Hours Rate Total Charge

3/1/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

9114 NE 32nd St - D. Teo; evaluate gate proposal request; visit site 
and coord w/ staff

0.75  $    125.00  $    93.75 

3/1/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

4015 95th Ave NE - Buchannan pathway; concept plan and coord w/ 
Mayor

1.25  $    125.00  $    156.25 

3/2/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

4612 92nd Ave NE - Katzinski; on-site for unauthorized pruning/ 
removal of a r/w tree; contact tree solutions for damage report/ fine; 

1.25  $    125.00  $    156.25 

3/3/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

4015 95th Ave NE - Buchannan pathway; on-site mtg w/ Mayor 0.75  $    125.00  $    93.75 

3/3/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

9114 NE 32nd St - D. Teo: discussion about procedure for gate 
review w/ Mona

0.25  $    125.00  $    31.25 

3/15/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

Sit in on flock camera zoom mtg w/ Austen to discuss placement 
along 92nd Ave NE

0.25  $    125.00  $    31.25 

3/17/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

Attend zoom mtg w/ COB utilities to determine permits required for 
their annual repair work

0.25  $    125.00  $    31.25 

3/22/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

9001 NE 41st St - answer email Re: ?'s about original grade and 
soils information

0.25  $    125.00  $    31.25 

3/23/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

Send 3 separate requests to KC Roads for maintenance work 
pricing: 1.) 92nd Ave shoulder gravel parking restoration and NE 
40th/92nd Ave pothole repair around existing CB; 2.) 9429 NE 40th 
& 4635 95th Ave NE stormwater main repairs identified on 2021 
annual clean and camera; 3.) Buchannan pathway improvements

3.00  $    125.00  $    375.00 

3/23/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

Buchannan pathway: 1.) coord w/ Bruisers for tree removal; 2.) 
coord w/ PSE IntoLight for add'l street light

0.75  $    125.00  $    93.75 

3/23/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

2021 KCFCD SROF Reimbursement Request #1 (9,419.90) for 
2021 Annual SW Clean and Camera work

0.75  $    125.00  $    93.75 

3/25/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

Impromptu mtg at town hall w/ resident chuck wallace (4658 95th 
Ave NE) Re: 4652 95th Ave NE; research and send plans for civil/ 
storm and geotech report

0.50  $    125.00  $    62.50 

3/28/22 Administration Town of Yarrow 
Point

Return phone call to 9045 NE 40th St - Dave Johnson Re: site 
development permit requirements

0.25  $    125.00  $    31.25 

Activity Subtotal for General Administration
10.25  $    125.00  $    1,281.25 

FUND: Unknown    Activity Type: General Administration    Invoice Code: Unknown 

6

60



Yarrow Point Invoice Detail 
March 2022

Stacia K. Schroeder, PE
Northwest Civil Solutions, LLC

14251 131st Avenue NE Kirkland, WA 98034
EIN: 26-4149507     UBI: 602-884-283

TOWN REIMBURSED ACTIVITIES

Activity Total for Capital Improvement Projects
7.75 $125.00 $968.75

Activity Total for Applicant - Pre-apps/Plan Reviews/ Permits/ Inspections 
20.50  $         125.00 $2,562.50

Activity Total for Reimbursed Categories
28.25  $         125.00 $3,531.25

TOWN GENERAL ADMINISTRATION ACTIVITIES

Activity Total for General Administration
10.25 $125.00 $1,281.25

TOWN TOTAL FOR ALL ACTIVITIES 38.50  $         125.00 $4,812.50

7

61



Mona H. Green, Town Planner
PROFESSIONAL PLANNING SERVICE
March 2022 INVOICE #22548

Date Type Hours Charge
03/03/22 9120 NE 32, Tonn: rev; t/conf Bel Fire; e-mail Fence 2022-02 0.50 67.50

03/08/22 2822 - 88 Ave NE, Kim: status w bldr Bldg 21-8310 0.25 33.75

03/10/22 9120 NE 32, Tonn: t/conf Bel Fire; e-mail Fence 2022-02 0.50 67.50

03/11/22 9018 NE 39 PL, Yarrow LLC: revisions Bldg 2021-08 0.75 101.25

03/15/22 9127 NE 36 St, Yetter: rev & e-mail Bldg 2022-05 0.50 67.50

03/18/22 4412 95 Ave NE, Mishra: revision Bldg 19-8054 0.50 67.50

SUBTOTAL - BLDG/FENCE 3.00 405.00

03/03/22 4628 - 95 Ave NE, Pelzer: prep, attend mtg PreApp 2022-03 1.00 135.00

03/03/22 4609 - 92 Ave NE, Donner: prep, attend mtg; follow up 3/7 PreApp 2022-04 1.50 202.50

03/10/22 4427 95 Ave NE, Angelone: prep, attend mtg PreApp 2022-05 1.00 135.00

03/17/22 COB Utilities (prep t/conf & mtg) PreApp 0.75 101.25

03/17/22 9050 NE 38 Pl, Box: prep, attend mtg PreApp 2022-06 1.00 135.00

03/31/22 9330 NE 40, Hayes: prep, attend mtg (also 3/17 research) PreApp 2022-07 2.00 270.00

03/31/22 9010 NE 37, Perry: prep, attend mtg PreApp 2022-08 1.00 135.00

03/31/22 4412 95 Ave NE, Mishra: t/conf agent; rev file; prep notes; e-mail PreApp 2022-09 1.50 202.50

SUBTOTAL - PREAPP 9.75 1316.25

03/17/22 9009 NE 42, Belfiore: new info; final rev Site 2022-01 0.50 67.50

03/21/22 4628 95 Ave NE, Pelzer: rev Site 2022-05 0.50 67.50

03/23/22 9127 NE 36, Yetter: comments; rev Site 2022-06 1.00 135.00

SUBTOTAL - SITE 2.00 270.00

03/04/22 9003 NE 37 Pl, Weber: t/conf property owner SDP 2022-02 0.50 67.50

03/14/22 9003 NE 37 Pl, Weber: analysis & staff report SDP 2022-02 3.00 405.00

03/17/22 9003 NE 37 Pl, Weber: finalize report; prep packet for HE; distribute SDP 2022-02 2.00 270.00

03/28/22 9003 NE 37 Pl, Weber: prep & attend public hearing SDP 2022-02 1.50 202.50

SUBTOTAL - SHORELINE SUBSTANTIAL DEVELOPMENT 7.00 945.00

03/22/22 4628 95 Ave NE, Pelzer: rev; e-mails; new info; prep SX SX 2022-01 1.00 135.00

SUBTOTAL - SHORELINE EXEMPTION 1.00 135.00

03/28/22 9071 NE 37 PL, Mehta: rev, app Mech 2022-03 0.50 67.50

03/30/22 2822 88 Ave NE, Kim: rev, app Mech 2022-04 0.50 67.50

SUBTOTAL - MECHANICAL 1.00 135.00

03/01/22 Mtg w Mayor 1.50 202.50

03/02/22 T/conf Town Atty 0.50 67.50

03/03/22 Comp Plan matters 0.50 67.50

03/03/22 9071 NE 34, Teo: t/conf, e-mail re pending Pending 0.25 33.75

03/04/22 T/conf land arch re pending shoreline proj Pending 0.25 33.75

62



Mona H. Green, Town Planner
PROFESSIONAL PLANNING SERVICE
March 2022 INVOICE #22548

03/07/22 Mtg prep; rev state matls re housing 1.00 135.00

03/07/22 9039 NE 33: t/conf bldr re potential ADU Pending 0.25 33.75

03/08/22 PC/Council mtg 2.00 270.00

03/16/22 King Co Assessor matter (multi) 0.75 101.25

03/17/22 T/conf land arch re tree code 0.25 33.75

03/18/22 Transition matters (multi-days) 1.50 202.50

03/21/22 9001 NE 41, Nordstrom: t/conf, e-mail (multi-days) Pending 0.75 101.25

03/23/22 T/conf Mayor, atty re admin issues 1.00 135.00

03/28/22 T/conf bldr re req Pending 0.25 33.75

03/29/22 Transition matters; tree code memo 2.00 270.00

03/30/22 9033 NE 37 Pl: t/conf re pending Pending 0.25 33.75

03/31/22 Comm w town atty re ongoing issue (multi thru 4/3) 0.50 67.50

03/31/22 Mtgs/consults with staff, public throughout month 2.00 270.00

SUBTOTAL - MISC 15.50 2092.50

TOTAL 39.25 5298.75

63



64



65



TOWN OF YARROW POINT 
RESOLUTION NO. 356 

 
A RESOLOUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF YARROW POINT 

APPROVING THE 2022 ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET AND WORK PROGRAM FOR A 
REGIONAL COALITION FOR HOUSING (ARCH) 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council passed Resolution No. 295 on March 9, 2010, 
authorizing execution of the Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement for a 
Regional Coalition for Housing (ARCH) by and between Yarrow point, 16 other cities 
and King County updating and continuing the operations of ARCH; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 11 of the Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement provides 
that the annual budget and work program for ARCH shall be recommended by the 
ARCH Executive Board to each member jurisdiction, and such recommendation has 
been made; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 11 of the Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement also 
provides that the recommended budget and work program shall not become effective 
until approved by the legislative body of each member jurisdiction, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Yarrow 
Point, Washington, that pursuant to Section 11 of the Amended and Restated Interlocal 
Agreement for ARCH, A Regional Coalition for Housing, approved by Resolution No. 
295, the Town Council hereby approves the 2022 ARCH Administrative Budget and 
Work Program as presented, and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that upon approval of the 2022 Budget and Work 
Program, the Council approves the amount of $2447 for the Town’s share of the budget 
and $7553 to the Housing Trust Fund. 
 
Adopted by the Town Council this 8th day of March, 2022. 
 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Mayor Katy K Harris 
 
_____________________________ 
ATTEST: Clerk-Treasurer Bonnie Ritter  

66



TOWN OF YARROW POINT 
RESOLUTION NO.357 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE DULY APPOINTED 

ADMINISTERING AGENCY FOR ARCH TO EXECUTE ALL 
DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO ENTER INTO AGREEMENTS FOR 

THE FUNDING OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECTS, AS 
RECOMMENDED BY THE ARCH EXECUTIVE BOARD, UTILIZING 

FUNDS FROM THE TOWN’S HOUSING TRUST FUND 
 
WHEREAS, A Regional Coalition for Housing (ARCH) was created by interlocal agreement to 
help coordinate the efforts of Eastside cities to provide affordable housing; and 

 
WHEREAS, the ARCH Executive Board has recommended that the Town of Yarrow Point 
participate in the funding of certain affordable housing projects and programs hereinafter 
described; and 

 
WHEREAS, the ARCH Executive Board has developed a number of recommended conditions 
to ensure that the Town’s affordable housing funds are used for their intended purpose and 
that projects maintain their affordability over time; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council has approved Resolution No. 295 approving, the Amended and 
Restated Interlocal Agreement for ARCH; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council desires to use $6300 from Town funds as designated below to 
finance the projects recommended by the ARCH Executive Board; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
YARROW POINT, WASHINGTON: 

 
Section 1. The Town Council authorizes the duly-appointed administering agency of 

ARCH pursuant to the Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement for ARCH to execute all 
documents and take all necessary actions to enter into Agreements on behalf of the Town to 
fund Lifewire Hope Starts Here Project, Life Enrichment Options LEO at Trailhead, Friends of 
Youth New Ground Kirkland, as well as to increase funding to Inland Housing Group/Horizon 
Housing Totel Lake Project, in a combined total amount not to exceed $6300.  

 
Section 2. The Agreements entered into pursuant to Section 1 of this resolution shall 

include terms and conditions to ensure that the Town’s funds are used for their intended 
purpose and that the projects maintain affordability over time. In determining what conditions 
should be included in the Agreements, the duly appointed administering agency of ARCH shall 
be guided by the recommendations set forth in the ARCH Executive Board’s memorandum of 
December 9, 2021. 

 
Adopted by the Town Council this 8th day of March, 2022. 

 
 
 

Mayor Katy K Harris 
 
Attest: Bonnie Ritter, Clerk-Treasurer 

 67



TOWN OF YARROW POINT 
RESOLUTION NO.358 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE 
AMENDED AND RESTATED INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR 

ARCH – A REGIONAL COALITION FOR HOUSING 
(DATED JULY  1, 2010)  

 
THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF YARROW POINT, WASHINGTON, DOES 
RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Mayor or her designee is hereby authorized to execute Amendment No. 1 to the 
Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement for ARCH – A Regional Coalition for Housing 
(dated July 1, 2010) to (1) change the name of the Citizen Advisory Board to the Community 
Advisory Board, (2) to temporarily allow up to four additional members to serve on the advisory 
board in order to enhance the diversity of and the breadth of skills and experience on said 
board, and (3) to revise language throughout the agreement consistent with these changes. 
 
Adopted by the Town Council this 8th day of March, 2022. 

 
 
 

Mayor Katy K Harris 
 
Attest: Bonnie Ritter, Clerk-Treasurer 

 

68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



TOWN OF YARROW POINT 
RESOLUTION NO. 356 

 
A RESOLOUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF YARROW POINT 

APPROVING THE 2022 ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET AND WORK PROGRAM FOR A 
REGIONAL COALITION FOR HOUSING (ARCH) 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council passed Resolution No. 295 on March 9, 2010, 
authorizing execution of the Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement for a 
Regional Coalition for Housing (ARCH) by and between Yarrow point, 16 other cities 
and King County updating and continuing the operations of ARCH; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 11 of the Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement provides 
that the annual budget and work program for ARCH shall be recommended by the 
ARCH Executive Board to each member jurisdiction, and such recommendation has 
been made; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 11 of the Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement also 
provides that the recommended budget and work program shall not become effective 
until approved by the legislative body of each member jurisdiction, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Yarrow 
Point, Washington, that pursuant to Section 11 of the Amended and Restated Interlocal 
Agreement for ARCH, A Regional Coalition for Housing, approved by Resolution No. 
295, the Town Council hereby approves the 2022 ARCH Administrative Budget and 
Work Program as presented, and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that upon approval of the 2022 Budget and Work 
Program, the Council approves the amount of $2447 for the Town’s share of the budget 
and $7553 to the Housing Trust Fund. 
 
Adopted by the Town Council this 8th day of March, 2022. 
 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Mayor Katy K Harris 
 
_____________________________ 
ATTEST: Clerk-Treasurer Bonnie Ritter  

87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



Business of The Town Council Agenda Bill 22-29 
Town of Yarrow Point, WA April 12, 2022 
 
        

Sport court repair options Proposed Council Action:  
Approve a selected quote.  

 

Presented by:  Deputy Clerk Austen Wilcox 

Exhibits: 1.) Quote from NW Court Consultants to tile court: ($19,756.34) 
2.) Quote from Folia Horticultural + Design to tile court: ($19,966.64) 
 
3.) Quote from NW Court Consultants to supply product/ no install: 
$15,693.65 
4.) Quote from Folia Horticultural + Design to supply product/ no 
install: $16,414.81 

 

 
Summary: 
The coating on the sport court has not held long between coatings and is currently 
bubbling and chipping. We have received complaints and requests to have it repaired. 
The town had the court coated in 2015 and then recoated summer of 2019. We 
received a quote in 2021 to have it recoated again in the amount of $6,090.00. This 
amount, we have been told, would be higher today due to inflation factors. 
 
Staff has been contacting companies to receive quotes and opinions on why the coating 
does not last. We have been told that drainage and the surrounding trees are 
problematic to the coating not holding up. One source believes that water could be 
soaking through the concrete from the bottom side up and making the coating bubble.  
 
The recommendation is to tile over the existing coating. The tile surface offered from 
both companies has a 15-year warranty.  
 
There are two sets of quotes from both companies. The first two include a full 
installation of the tiles. The second set includes only the product and providing the 
edging around the perimeter. The remainder of the install would be left to the 
responsibility of the town. 
 
ARPA funds will qualify to cover the cost.  
 
Recommended Action: 
Approve a selected quote.   

127



Quote No.1

128



129



130



131



132



133



Quote No. 2

134



135



136



137



Address

=

SITE PREPARATION

0
0
0
0
0

BASKETBALL SLAM SYSTEMS Quantity

Pro-Slam System
Collegiate Slam System

COURT LIGHTS * ELECTRICAL HOOK UP IS NOT INCLUDED (by owner)

Double fixture 300W LED*
Single fixture 300W LED*
Single fixture 150W LED*
Upgrade existing light using existing pole* 0

MULTI-SPORT NET SYSTEMS

1 Multi-Sport Net System
Removable Round Net Pole
Non-Removable Square Net Pole

REBOUNDERS, GOALS, AND SOFT NET CONTAINMENT FENCING

Hockey Goal
Futsal Goal
Rebound System (including frame) - 10' x 10' 
Rebound System (including frame) - 10' x 21' 
Replacement Rebounder Kit 10' x 10' (includes net, bungees, apron, tape - NO frame)
Replacement Rebounder Kit 10' x 21' (includes net, bungees, apron, tape - NO frame)

10' Soft Net Fence (includes freight & install - NOT support posts)
5' Soft Net Fence (includes freight & install - NOT support posts)
Replace 10' soft netting (includes freight and install)
Replace 5' soft netting (includes freight and install)
Gate for Soft Net Fencing

INSTALLATION FOR ALL ITEMS OF COURT EQUIPMENT: 1

SURFACE

1 SportGame PB Sq. Ft. @
0 PowerGame + Sq. Ft. @
0 PowerGame Sq. Ft. @
0 Installation
2 B-Ball Lines Ln. Ft. @
1 Multisport Lines Ln. Ft. @
0 Tennis Lines Ln. Ft. @
0 Border Line Ln. Ft. @
0 Other Lines Ln. Ft. @

Shuffleboard Set @
0 Custom Logo @

FREIGHT + MOBILIZATION: 1

OPTIONS & OTHER

1 0

2 0

3 0

4 6

PAYMENT TERMS: 50% Down Payment =
45% Upon Installation of Equipment and/or Surface =
5% Upon Completion =

PREPARED BY DATE

ACCEPTED BY DATE

ACCEPTED FOR CDI BY DATE

Warranty - For all equipment and Surfacing. Provided by Conner Sport Court, Inc. of Salt Lake City, Utah.

4030 95th Ave NE

City Yarrow Point Zip 98004 30

COURT DEVELOPMENT INC.

12805 NE 126TH PL
KIRKLAND . WA . 98034

Name Town of Yarrow Point  ATTN:  Austen Wilcox COURT SIZE

Cell 425-454-6994 Other 425-454-7899(fax) 1800

Email depclerk@yarrowpointwa.gov

X 60

Home Work

Core drilling - minimum charge $600.00 Not Applicable
Pressure washing of slab - minimum charge $250.00 0 @ 0.35$   Not Applicable

Owner is responsible for any/all concrete or asphalt repairs and/or levelling  (if needed) Not Included

Remove, haul and dump existing modular surface 0 @ 0.50$   Not Applicable
Tear down, haul & dump existing hoops, lights and rebounders 0 @ 200.00$     Not Applicable

0 2,600.00$  Not Applicable
0 2,300.00$  Not Applicable

Setting anchors for new hoops, lights, & net poles 0 @ 350.00$     Not Applicable
Setting support posts for soft net fencing and rebounder sleeves 0 @ 75.00$   Not Applicable

- 0 -$  Not Applicable

0 2,800.00$  Not Applicable
0 2,100.00$  Not Applicable

0 375.00$     Not Applicable

0 1,950.00$  Not Applicable

0 395.00$     Not Applicable
0 1,800.00$  Not Applicable

0 395.00$     Not Applicable
0 575.00$     Not Applicable

0 500.00$     Not Applicable
0 700.00$     Not Applicable

0 900.00$     Not Applicable
0 1,400.00$  Not Applicable

0 Ln. Ft @ 20.00$   Not Applicable
0 Ln. Ft @ 15.00$   Not Applicable

0 Ln. Ft @ 60.00$   Not Applicable
0 Ln. Ft @ 50.00$   Not Applicable

0 @ 400.00$   Not Applicable

Not Applicable

1800 6.50$   11,700.00$    

Not Included
Key and Partial Three Point Line 120 3.00$   360.00$   

0 6.00$   Not Applicable
0 5.50$   Not Applicable

- 0 3.00$   Not Included
- 0 3.00$   Not Included

20' x 44' 198 3.00$   594.00$   
- 0 3.00$   Not Included

Freight of product, and transport of personnel + equipment to job site 1,600.00$   

- -
- -

- 0 750.00$   Not Included
- 0 -$  Not Included

793.65$   
Visa & MasterCard accepted: 3% Surcharge

Nick Dulin 3/25/2022 SUBTOTAL 14,254.00$     

DOES NOT INCLUDE ANY GRINDING Not Included
OWNER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR SLAB REPAIRS AND LEVELING Not Included

7,800.00$    
VALID FOR 15 DAYS7,100.00$    

COURTD*249RT

EMAIL: INQUIRY@SPORTCOURTWA.COM    .    PHONE  425 823 0461    .  FAX  425 823 0489

TAX 10.10% 1,439.65$       

TOTAL 15,693.65$  

Quote No.3 (No installation included)

138



Quote No.4 (No installation included)

139



140



141



 

 

Business of The Town Council Agenda Bill 22-30 

Town of Yarrow Point, WA April 12, 2022 
 

        

Approving the Town’s expenditure for a 
sharing surface in Sally’s Alley 

Proposed Council Action:  

Approve the installation and purchase for 
a sharing surface in Sally’s Alley.  

 

Presented by:  Mayor Harris 

Exhibits: None. 

 
Summary: 
Many Town residents have expressed the desire to maintain a sharing surface to be 
centrally located in Sally’s Alley. The sharing surface will create a space for town 
residents to share the bounty from their gardens with their neighbors. The sharing 
surface would temporarily be placed unobtrusively and safely off of the walking path in 
Sally’s Alley until a permanent location is established in the final Sally’s Alley 
Improvement Plan for the benefit of Town residents. The associated expense to 
purchase and install the surface is $350.00. 

 
Recommended Action: 
Approve the installation and purchase for a sharing surface in Sally’s Alley. 

142



 

 

Business of The Town Council Agenda Bill 22-31 

Town of Yarrow Point, WA April 12, 2022 
 

        

Plaque at Town Hall honoring late Peter 
D. Swindley 

Proposed Council Action:  

Approve the creation of a plaque for 
Town Hall honoring late Peter D. 
Swindley.  

 

Presented by:  Mayor Harris and Councilmember Scandella 

Exhibits: None. 

 
Summary: 
Create a plaque for Town Hall honoring late Peter D. Swindley, the resident architect 
who designed Yarrow Point Town Hall and many other homes in Yarrow Point. 

 
Recommended Action: 
Approve the creation of, expenditure for, and placement at Town Hall of a plaque 
honoring late Peter D. Swindley. 

143



Town Council Project Tracking Sheet

Project Number Project Description Status Priority Lead person
Date/year 

started
Updated

Date/year 
Complete

Comments

21-01 Park Board Improvements to Sally's Alley Started John McGlenn/PB 10/21/22 2/22/22 John McGlenn and PB are working on plans

21-05
ROW Parking Overhaul; separate Construction Parking and 

ROW Parking
Future High

Staff/Attorney/ Building 
Official

10/21/21 4/8/22
Mayor working with Town Attorney and Building Official. May 

Council meeting discussion. 
21-07 Emergency preparedness Future Mayor & staff Summer project.

22-03 Add additional streetlights on 95th Ave NE Started Town Engineer 1/22/22 4/7/22

Councilmember Porter stated there are not enough 
streetlights on 95th. Ask PSE to install more lights on 95th. 

Town Engineer Schroeder has contacted PSE to add 6 
additional lights to 95th. PSE responded on 3/14 . PSE notified 
us on 4/7/22: "Please understand we are still experiencing a 

huge backlog of work due to staffing issue. so it will take a bit 
to field and complete costs."

22-04 Traffic backups on roundabout Future Mayor/Clyde Hill/WSDOT 1/22/22 2/1/22

Council discussed traffic backups off the freeway and 
roundabout due to a school buses and parents. Work with 

WSDOT and Clyde Hill to improve pedestrian safety and traffic 
@ roundabout.

22-05
Addition of one Flock Safety LPR camera to capture vehicles 

exiting the Point on 92nd
Started High Staff 2/8/22 3/21/22

We anticpate the new camera to be installed by end of 
April/early May.

 22-06
Follow up with WSDOT regarding restoration to roundabout 

due to truck accident in December
Completed Staff 2/10/2022 2/22/2022 4/7/2022

WSDOT repaired the broken fence in March. Istvan reports 
that the landscaping looks OK and will need a little time to 

grow back. 

22-07 Sport Court refinishing Started Austen 2/10/22 3/8/22
The sport court needs to be resurfaced. Last resurfaced July 

2019. Options will be presented at April meeting.

22-08 Roundabout Safety Started Mayor & Council 1/11/22 2/1/22
Roundabout pedestrian safety concerns. Consider a barrier 

between the pathway and roadway (this could include 
plantings.) 

22-09 Acquision of iPads or other electronic device for Council Completed Staff 2/28/22 4/5/22 4/5/2022
Staff is researching costs for iPads for Council to eliminate the 

hard copy Council packets and to follow best PRA practices. 
iPads were ordered 3/17 and are ready for Council use.

Page 1144



Town Council Project Tracking Sheet

Project Number Project Description Status Priority Lead person
Date/year 

started
Updated

Date/year 
Complete

Comments

22-10 Join Twitter to post Town news & notices Completed Staff 2/28/22 3/7/22 3/7/2022

Research the option to join Twitter as another place to 
broadcast Town related news and notices. Staff created a 

Twitter account on 3/7 and will post news and notices to this 
additional media source.  

22-11 Safe corner passing NE 40th/95th Started Staff & Park Board 3/3/22
Planning walking path around corner on Buchanan's property 

and ROW. 

22-12 Additional (6) paddleboard slots at end of NE 42nd St. Started Mayor & Staff 4/8/2022
There are currently 9 paddleboard slots. Due to interest in 

having more slots, the town purchased 6 more and will work 
to have them installed by end of May. 

Last update: 
4/8/2022

Color Code Key:
Completed

Future
Started

Page 2145


	01 AGENDA numbered
	NUMBERED Complete packet
	NUMBERED Complete packet
	02 STAFF REPORTS COVER PAGE
	03 Police Report - March
	YP Monthly Recap
	YP Narrative Summary
	YP Summary
	Report

	YP Citations & Infractions
	Sheet1


	04 Fire & EMS - March
	05 Staff Report - First Quarter 2022 Financial Report
	06 March 8, 2022 Regular Council Minutes
	07 March 8, 2022 Joint Town Council and Planning Commission Special Meeting
	08 Consent cover page
	09 Payment approval and payroll reports
	10 Consultant invoices (combined)
	Attorney invoice
	Building Official Invoice
	Engineer invoice
	Planner Invoice

	11 AB 22-27 - COMPLETE ARCH FOR PACKET
	ADP63DC.tmp
	TOWN OF YARROW POINT RESOLUTION NO.357
	NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF YARROW POINT, WASHINGTON:

	ADP4323.tmp
	TOWN OF YARROW POINT RESOLUTION NO.358


	12 AB 22-28 - 2021 Annual Report Compete for packet
	13 AB 22-29 - Sport Court Repair Options (Complete)
	AB 22-29 Sport court repair options
	Sport Court Bids (Combined)
	Sport Court Bid #1
	Sport Court Bid #2
	Sport Court Bid #3 (No install)
	Sport Court Bid #4 (No install)




	14 AB 22-30 Sally's Alley Bench
	15 AB 22-31 Plaque for Peter D. Swindley
	NUMBERED Complete packet
	Town Council Projects - Tracking Sheet
	Sheet1





